
CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD 
SAN DIEGO REGION 

In the matter of: 

Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss Inc. 
12535 Vigilante Road 
Lakesid~, CA 92040 

WOlD: 9 371019954 

YOU ARE HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT: 

COMPLAINT NO. R9-2013-0051 
FOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY 

Violations of 
Order No. 97 -03-DWQ, National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System General Permit No. 
CAS000001 , Waste Discharge 

Requirements for Discharges of 
Storm Water Associated with 
Industrial Activities Excluding 

Construction Activities 

June 14, 2013 

1. Enniss Inc. (hereafter Discharger), located at 12535 Vigilante Road, 
Lakeside, California, is alleged to have violated provisions of law for which 
the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region 
(San Diego Water Board) must impose civil liability pursuant to Section 
13399.33 and Section 13385 of the California Water Code (CWC). 

2. This Administrative Civil Liabi lity Complaint is issued under authority of 
Water Code section 13323. 

3. The Discharger operates a diversified construction company with areas of 
specialization including sand and material sales, construction material 
recycling and reclamation, steel design, fabrication, assembly and erection, 
earth moving, grading and site work, and demolition. The Discharger is 
identified with Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) number 3325 (Steel 
Foundries - NEC). This category of industrial facility is required to obtain 
coverage under Order No. 97 -03-DWQ, National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System General Permit No. CAS000001, Waste Discharge 
Requirements for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Industrial 
Activities Excluding Construction Activities (General Permit). 

4. On November 17, 2005, the Discharger submitted a Notice of Intent for 
coverage under the General Permit. 

VRodriguez
Text Box
November 13, 2013
Item No. 7
Supporting Document No. 2



Complaint No. R9-2013-0051 
Ennis Inc. 

2 June 14, 2013 

5. The integrity and effectiveness of the Industrial NPDES regulatory program 
relies upon discharger compliance accomplished by self-evaluation and self­
reporting. Self-evaluation is accomplished by implementing the programs 
and provisions of the General Permit. Self-reporting is accomplished by the 
submission of an annual report as outlined in General Permit Sections B 8-
14. Section B 14 requires all facility operators to submit an annual 
monitoring report by July 1st of each year. The annual report includes a 
summary and evaluation of visual observations and sampling results, 
laboratory reports and an Annual Comprehensive Site Compliance 
Evaluation Report. Therefore, timely submittal of the required annual report 
is critically important for the evaluation of a facility's compliance with water 
quality standards. 

6. Pursuant to Water Code section 13399.31, the San Diego Water Board 
issued a Notice of Violation dated September 29, 2011 for failure to submit 
the FY 2010/2011 annual storm water monitoring report. On December 20, 
2011, San Diego Water Board Staff conducted a site inspection of the 
facility, and requested submittal of the missing report. This inspection 
constituted the 2nd notification of failure to submit the annual monitoring 
report. 

7. Water Code sections 13399.31(d) and 13399.33 direct the San Diego Water 
Board to impose administrative civil liability in an amount that is not less 
than one thousand dollars ($1 ,000) and recover the costs incurred if a 
discharger fails to submit the required annual report within 60 days after the 
San Diego Water Board issues the initial notice of noncompliance. 

VIOLATION SUBJECT TO THIS COMPLAINT 

8. The Discharger violated Monitoring and Reporting Requirements in Section 
14 of the General Permit by failing to submit the required monitoring report 
for Fiscal Year (FY) 2010-2011 by the July 1, 2011 due date. The San 
Diego Water Board did not receive the report until March 7, 2012. The 
report was 249 days late. 

9. The details of this violation are set forth in full in the accompanying 
Technical Analysis, which is incorporated herein by this reference as if set 
forth in full. 

MAXIMUM LIABILITY 

10. ewe section 13385(a)(2) provides that any person who violates waste 
discharge requirements issued pursuant to the Federal Clean Water Act 
shall be civilly liable. Section 13385(c) provides that civil liability may be 
administratively imposed by a regional board in an amount not to exceed 
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each day of violation. 



Complaint No. R9-2013-0051 
Ennis Inc. 

3 June 14, 2013 

11. Based on the late submittal of the FY 2010-2011 annual report, the 
Discharger is alleged to have violated the General Permit for 249 days (from 
July 2, 2011 to March 7, 2012). The total maximum liability for this violation 
is $2,490,000. 

MINIMUM LIABILITY 

12. ewe section 13399.33(c-d) requires that the Regional Board impose a 
mandatory minimum penalty of not less than $1,000 and recover staff costs 
associated with this enforcement action for any person who fails to submit 
an annual report after being given appropriate notice in accordance with 
ewe section 13399.31. 

PROPOSED LIABILITY 

13. It is recommended that the San Diego Water Board impose civil liability 
against the Discharger in the amount of five thousand nine hundred fifty 
dollars ($5,950), which includes staff costs of $4,950 to date, for failure to 
submit the FY 2010-2011 annual report on time. If the Discharger elects to 
contest this matter, the recommended liability may increase to recover 
additional necessary staff costs. 

14. The State Water Boards 2009 Enforcement Policy penalty calculation 
methodology is not required to be used in determining the amount of civil 
liability when assessing a mandatory minimum penalty pursuant to ewe 
section 13399.33(c). 

Dated this 14th day of June, 2013, 

Assistant Executive Officer 

Signed pursuant to the authority delegated 
by the Executive Officer to the Assistant 
Executive Officer. 

SMARTS: 

Application ID: 291369 
Violation ID: 947974 
Regulatory Measure ID: 390384 
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A. INTRODUCTION 

This technical analysis provides a summary of factual and analytical evidence 
that support the findings, allegations and proposed liability in Complaint No. R9-
2013-0051 for an Administrative Civil Liability (Complaint) in the amount of 
$5,950 against Ennis, Inc. for violations of State Water Resources Control Board, 
Order No. 97-03-DWQ, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) General Permit No. CAS000001 , Waste Discharge Requirements 
(WDRs) for Discharges of Storm Water Associated With Industrial Activities 
Excluding Construction Activities (hereafter General Permit). 

The Complaint alleges the acts or failures to act that constitute violations of law, 
the provision of law authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed civil 
liability. The recommended liability of $5,950 includes a mandatory penalty of 
$1 ,000 for the late submittal of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2010/2011 annual report and 
combined staff costs of $4,950 associated with the late annual report. 

The State Water Board 2009 Enforcement Policy penalty calculation 
methodology was not used in the determination of the proposed liability amount 
due to the fact that the proposed liability is a mandatory minimum penalty 
pursuant to ewe section 13399.33(c). 

B. BACKGROUND 

Enniss Inc. (hereafter, the Discharger) is a diversified construction company 
located in Lakeside, San Diego County. According to its company website, its 
areas of specialization include sand and material sales, construction material 
recycling and reclamation, steel design, fabrication, assembly and erection, earth 
moving, grading and site work, and demolition, and has identified its operations 
with Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) number 3325 (Steel Foundries -
NEC) .2 This category of industrial facility is required to obtain coverage under 
the General Permit. 

On November 29, 2005 the State Water Resources Control Board processed a 
Notice of Intent (NO I) (Exhibit A) submitted by the Discharger for coverage under 
the General Permit, and issued Waste Discharge Identification Number (WOlD) 9 
371019954. The NOI was submitted by, and prepared under the direction of Mr. 
Chad Enniss, the owner and operator. 

1 http://www.enniss.net/ 
2 Facilities that discharge stormwater associated with industrial activity requiring coverage under 
the General Permit are listed by category in 40 Code of Federal Regulations Section 
122.26(b)(14) and Attachment 1 of the General Permit. 
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Section B of the General Permit contains Monitoring and Reporting 
Requirements. Item 14 of Section B requires all facility operators to submit an 
annual report to the Executive Officer of the San Diego Water Board by July 1 of 
each year. The annual report must include, but is not limited to, a summary of 
visual observations and sampling results, an evaluation of the visual 
observations and sampling and analysis results. laboratory reports, an annual 
comprehensive site compliance evaluation report, and if necessary, an 
explanation of why the facility did not implement any activities required by the 
General Permit. 

The Discharger complied with the annual report submittal requirements of the 
General Permit for the first three years of coverage. However in 2009 the 
Discharger failed to submit the 2008/2009 Annual Report in a timely fashion. 
After receiving two Notices of Violation from the San Diego Water Board the 
report was ultimately submitted 173 days late. 

On September 29. 2011 , in accordance with Water Code section 13399.31 , the 
San Diego Water Board issued Notice of Violation R9-2011-0093 to the 
Discharger for failure to submit its 2010/2011 Annual Report. On December 20, 
2011, the San Diego Water Board conducted a site inspection of the facility and 
requested submittal of the missing annual report. This inspection constituted the 
second notification of failure to submit the annual report. Mr. Enniss stated during 
inspection that a copy of the report would be submitted by December 22, 2011. 
There is no record of this report being submitted on or around that date. 

Issuance of Expedited Payment Letter (EPL) 

By letter, on February 23, 2012, the San Diego Water Board offered the 
Discharger the opportunity to participate in the Expedited Payment Program to 
resolve the violation associated with the failure to submit the 2010/2011 Annual 
Report (see attached Exhibit B). The EPL outlined a conditional offer to the 
Discharger to pay the mandatory $1 ,000 administrative civil liability, submit the 
outstanding annual report, and waive its right to a hearing. In return the San 
Diego Water Board agreed to forgo any additional liability that may have been 
assessed pursuant to Water Code Section 13385, and to consider the matter 
settled. 

On March 7, 2012, the Discharger responded to the San Diego Water Board with 
a letter rejecting the Expedited Payment Program offer (see attached Exhibit C). 
The Discharger asserted that its consultant Highfill Group Engineering submitted 
the report in a timely fashion "on or before July 1, 2011 ". However, a thorough 
review of the San Diego Water Board records did not find the report in question. 
The rejection letter further asserted that a copy of the report was hand delivered 
to the San Diego Water Board "sometime in late December 2011 ". However, no 
documentation supporting this claim has been found in the Water Board files, nor 
has the discharger provided any documentation supporting this claim. And lastly, 
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the rejection letter asserted that a representative for the Discharger (Melisa 
Morehead) spoke to multiple San Diego Water Board staff (Whitney Ghoram and 
Tony Felix) who acknowledged receipt of the annual report prior to the actual 
date the report was received. However, both Ms. Ghoram and Mr. Felix dispute 
this claim. 

The March 7, 2013 correspondence from the Discharger contained a copy of the 
delinquent FY 2010/2011 Annual Report. The report was a total of 249 days late. 
The submitted report was unsigned by the Owner of the Facility, as required by 
the General Permit. 

On March 30, 2012, the San Diego Water Board informed the Discharger by 
letter that the offer to participate in the Expedited Payment Program had been 
withdrawn (see attached Exhibit D). The letter informed the Discharger that by 
declining the EPL offer, it should expect a formal enforcement action would be 
pursued by the San Diego Water Board and that the liability amount of this action 
would exceed the $1,000 mandatory minimum penalty required by law. 

C. VIOLATIONS 

Failure to Submit FY 2010-2011 Annual Report 

As described above, the Monitoring and Reporting Requirements in Section 14 of 
the General Permit require the submitta l of an annual monitoring report by July 
1st of each year. The Discharger violated Monitoring and Reporting 
Requirements in Section 14 of the General Permit by failing to submit the FY 
2010/2011 annual monitoring report by July1 , 2011. The Report was not 
submitted to the San Diego Water Board until March 7, 2012. The report was 249 
days late. 

D. DETERMINATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY 

Maximum Liability 

Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, the maximum administrative civil liability 
which could be imposed by the San Diego Water Board for failing to submit the 
annual report is ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each day in which the 
violation occurs. The violation continued for 249 days (July 2, 2011 to March 7, 
2012). Therefore, the maximum administrative civil liability for the non-submittal 
of the FY 2010/2011 annual report is two million four hundred ninety thousand 
dollars ($2,490,000). 

Minimum Liability 

Pursuant to Water Code section 13399.33, subdivisions (c) and (d) require that 
the San Diego Water Board impose a penalty of not less tha_n $1 ,000 and 
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recover San Diego Water Board staff costs associated with this enforcement 
action for any person who fails to submit an annual report in accordance with 
Water Code section 13399.31 . The San Diego Water Board staff costs for 
enforcement of this violation are $4,950 (see Exhibit E for staff costs breakdown). 

Proposed Liability 

It is recommended that the San Diego Water Board impose civil liability against 
the Discharger in the amount of five thousand nine hundred fifty dollars ($5,950), 
which includes staff costs of $4,950 to date (as described in the complaint) , for 
failure to submit the FY 2010/2011 annual report. If the Discharger elects to 
contest this matter, the recommended liability may increase to recover additional 
necessary staff costs. 

E. EXHIBITS 

A. November 29, 2005 Notice of Intent 
B. February 23, 2012 Expedited Payment Letter (EPL) 
C. March 7, 2012 Discharger Response to EPL 
D. March 30, 2012 Withdrawal of EPL Offer Letter 
E. Staff Cost Estimation 
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EXHIBIT A 

ENNISS INC. Notice of Intent 

November 29, 2005 

June 14, 2013 
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California Regional Water Quality Control Board 
San Diego Region 

Matthew Rodl"iquez 
Secretary far 

Over 50 Years Scmng San Diego, Onnee, aud R.ivenlde Counties 
Recipient of the 2004 Euvironmental Award for Ouutaadillg Adlievemnt from USEP A 

Edmund C. Brown, Jr. 

En vi 'onmentDl Protection 

February 23, 2012 

Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss, Inc. 
PO Box 1769 
Lakeside, CA 92040 

9174 Sky Parle Coun, Suite 100, San Diuo, California 92123-4353 
(853)467-2952 • Fax (858) S71..0972 

http://www. watc::rboards.ca.gov/sandiego 

Certified Maii·Retum Receipt Requested 
7010 1060 0000 4952 9864 

In reoly refer to: 
Application ID: 291369:wghoram 
WDID:9 371019954 

OFFER TO PARTICIPATE IN AN EXPEDITED PAYMENT PROGRAM FOR FAILURE 
TO SUBMIT THE 2010-2011 .ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL STORM WATER REPORT, 
ORDER NO. 9'7..03-DWQ, ,-NPDES NO. CAS000001 

EN~ISS, INC., PO BOX 1769, LAKESIDE, CA 92040 

Mr. Ennlss: 

This letter is to notify Enniss, Inc. of an alleged violation of the California Water Code 
{Water Code) regarding the faih,1re to submit the 2010-2011 Annual Industrial Storm 
Water Report (Annual Repo-rt) to the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 
San Diego Region (San Diego Water Board), as required by the State Water Resources 
Control Board· (State Water Board}·Genera/ Permit for Storm Water Discharges 
Associated with Industrial Activities (InduStrial Storm Water Permit). This letter also 
notffies Enniss, Inc. of the opportunity to participate in the San Diego Water Board 
Expedited Payment Program for failure to submit the Annual Report. The Expedited 
Payment Program addresses liability that must be assessed pursuant to Water Code 

· section 13399.33 and would forgo additional liability that may be assessed pursuant to 
·Water Code section 13385. A plain language summary of -the alleged violation and the 
offer to partic!pate in the Expedited Payment Program is attached hereto .as Exhibit A. 

NOTIFICATION 

Based on San Diego Water Board Administrative Records, as of February 23,2012, 
Enniss, Inc. stm has not submitted the 2010-2011 Annual Report as required by the 
Industrial Storm Water Permit. Failure to submit the Annual Report violates the 
re'quirements of the Industrial Storm Water Permit, th~ Water Code, and the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act (Clean Water Act (CWA)). The San Diego Water Board 
previously sent Enniss, Inc. a Notice of Violation (NOV) attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

California Environmental Protection Agency 

O &cycled Paper 

Governor 
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In addition to the NOV, San Diego Water Board staff conducted a site inspection on 
December 20, 2011 and requested the 201.0-2011 Annual Report. Pursuant to Water 
Code Section 13399.31 (c), the December 20, 2011 Inspection notification constitutes a 
second notice of failure to submit the Annual Report. On December 22, 2011, San 
Diego Water Board Staff contacted Enniss, Inc. by phone to follow up on the request for 
the Annual Report made during the December 20, 2011 Inspection. The December 20, 
2011 inspectiqn report Is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

STATUTORY LIABILITY 

Potential Discretionary Liability 
. Pursuant to Water Code section 13385(c)(1 ), Enniss, Inc. is subject to discretionary 
administrative cMl liabilities of up to TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1 0,000) for each 
violation for each day in which a violation occurs (I.e., each day Enniss, Inc. fails to · 
submit the Annual Report).1 These discretionary administrative civil liabilities may be 
assessed by the San Diego Water Board, beginning with the date that the violation first 
occurred. In this matter, and as set forth above, the days of violation will be calculated 
from July 1, 2011 , up to the date the 2010-2011 Annual Report is received. 

Mandatorv Minimum Penalty 
In addition, pursuant to Water Code section 13399.33(c}, Enniss, Inc. shall also be 
subject to a minimum penalty of not less than ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000) 
per year of noncompliance or fraction thereof to be assessed by the San Diego Water 
Board for faiting to submit the Annual Report within sixty (60} days after the NOV 
{Exhibit B) was sent. 

The formal enforcement action that the San Diego Water Board uses to assess such 
civil liabilities is an administrative civil liability complaint, although the San Diego Water 
Board may instead refer such matters to the Office of the Attorney General for 
prosecution. U referred to the Attorney General for prosecution, the Superior Court may 
assess Civil liability up to TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000) per 
violation per day, as set forth in Water Code section 13385(b )( 1 ). 

A copy of Water Code sections 13385 and 13399.33 Is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

CONDITIONAL OFFER TO PART1CIPATE IN EXPEDITED PAYMENT PROGRAM 

Ennlss, Inc. may avoid a fom'laJ enforcement action and settle the alleged failure to 
submit the report identified in the NOV attached hereto as Exhibit 8 by participating in 
the San Diego Water Board Expedited Payment Program. Details of the' proposed 
settlement are described below, as well as in the "Acceptance of Conditional 

1 The California Water Code, Including section 13385, can be accessed on--line at 
http:J/www.waterboards.ca.gov/laws_regulations/docs/portercologne.pdf 

Califor'!-ilz Environmental Protection Agency 

0 Recycled Papu 
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Resolution and Waiver of Right to Hearing, [Proposed] Order" (Acceptance and Waiver) 
attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

To promote resolution of the alleged failure to submit the report, the San Diego Water 
Board enforcement staff makes the following conditional offer. Enniss, Inc. may accept 
this offer, waive Its right to a hearing, submit its Annual Report on or before March 23, 
2012 and pay a ONE THOUSAND DOLLAR ($1 ,000) administrative civil liability for the 
failure to submit the report identified in the NOV attached hereto as Exhibit B. If Enniss, 
Inc. elects to take advantage of this early settlement offer, subject. to the conditions set 
forth herein, the San Diego Water Board will accept Ennlss, Inc.'s Annual Report and 
payment of the administrative civil liability as settlement of any enforcement action that 
would otherwise arise out of the failure to submit the report identified In the NOV 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

The Expedited Payment Program does not address liability for any violation that is not 
specifically Identified in the NOV attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

ENNISS, INC.'S OPTIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESPONDING TO OFFER 

ACCEPTING OFFER: 

If Enniss, Inc. accepts this early settlement offer, please sign and submit the 
Acceptance and Waiver attached hereto as Exhibit E and the delinquent Annual Report 
on or before March 23, 2012 to: 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region 
917 4 Sky Park Court, Suite 1 00 
San Diego, CA 92123 . 
Attention: Application ID: 291369:wghoram, WDID:9 371019954 

A blank copy of the 201 0-2011 Annual Report forms can be downloaded from the State 
Water Board's web site: 
http://www.wa1erboards.ca.govlwater: issueslprograms/stormwater/annual reportslannr 
pt10 11 .pdf 

If the Annual Report is determined to be complete by the San Diego Water Board, the 
Acceptance and Waiver (Exhibit E) will be held, pending a 30-day public notice period 
described below, and counter-signed by the San Diego Water Board Executive Officer 
and returned to you with an invoice for payment 

California Environmental Prouction Agency 
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CONTESTING THE ALLEGED VIOLATION: 

February 23, 2012 

If Enniss, Inc. wishes to contest the failure to submit the Annual Report alleged in th~ 
NOV attached hereto as Exhibit B, the challenge must be received on or by March 23, 
2012. Please identify, in writing to the San Diego Water Board, the basis for the 
challenge (factual error, affirmative defense, etc.). The San Diego Water Board 
enforcement staff will evaluate that basis and make one of the following determinations: 

1. If it is determined that the alleged failure to submit the report is not supported, no 
further action will be taken for that violation, and you will be notified of that 
determination. 

2. If it is dete.rmlned that the contested violation as alleged is meritorious, Enniss, 
Inc. will be notified and should expect that a formal enforcement action will be 
pursued for which it will receive notice of any deadlines associated with that 
action. In a formal enforcement action, the liability amount sought and/or 
imposed may significantly exceed the liability amount set forth in this conditional 
offer. Moreover, the San Diego Water Board will also seek recovery of staff 
costs incurred with regard to the formal enforcement action pursuant to Water 
Code section 13399 .33( d). 

REJECTING OFFER: 

If Enniss, Inc. chooses to reject the San Diego Water Board enforcement staff offer 
andlor chooses not to complete and return the Acceptance ahd Waiver (Exhibit E), you 
will receive notice of a formal enforcement action and any deadlines associated with 
that action. In such an action, the liability amount sought and/or imposed may 
significantly exceed the liability amount set forth In this conditional offer. Moreover, the 
San Diego Water Board staff costs Incurred for enforcement are a factor which will be 
considered In assessing Enniss, Inc.'s liability amount. 

Enniss, Inc. should also note that in the event the San Diego Water Board enforcement 
staff pursues a formal enforcement action for the failure to submit the report alleged in 
the NOV attached hereto as Exhibit 8 , the San Diego Water Board enforcement staff 
will review its records to determine whether Enniss, Inc. has previously failed to submit 
an Annual Report. The San Diego Water Board shall consider any such previous 
failures when assessing the liability amount. This consideration may result In the 
liability amount being sought and/or imposed to significantly exceed the amount set 
forth in this Conditional Offer. 

Californw Environmental Protection Agency 
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CONDITIONS FOR SAN DIEGO WATER BOARD ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION 

This offer to participa1e in the Expedited Payment Program is conditional upon the San 
Diego Water Board's receipt of confirmation that Enniss, Inc. has submitted the Annual 
Report to the Sah Diego Water Board on or before March 23, 2012. If Enniss, Inc. · 
chooses not to or fails to submit the Annual Report on or before that date, this offer will 
be deemed withdrawn and a formal enforcement action will be pursued. After the offer 
Is deemed withdrawn, the San Diego Water Board enforcement staff will notify Enniss, 

. Inc. of the impending enforcement action and any associated deadlines. 

Should Enniss, lhc. participate in the Expedited Payment Program, the settlement wiU 
be published rn the following manner: Federal regulations require the San Diego Water 
Board to publish notice of and to provide at least thirty (30) days for public comment on 
any settlement of an enforcement action addressing NPDES permit violations (40 
C.F.R. section 123~27(d)(2)(iii)). Upon the receipt.of Enniss, Inc.'s Acceptance and 
Waiver (Exhibit E) and Annual Report on or before March 23, 2012, the San Diego 
Water Board enforcement staff will publish a notice of the proposed resolution of the 
failure to submit the report alleged in.the NOV attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

1. If no comments are received within the notice period, the San Diego Water 
Board Executive Officer will execute the Acceptance .and Waiver (Exhibit E) as a 
stipulated order assessing the uncontested penalty amount pursuant to Water 
Code section 13399.33 as described under the heading •statutory Liability" 
herein. You will then be notified that payment Is due within 30 days. Failure to 
pay the penalty within that time frame may result In further liability, referral of the 
matter to the Attorney General, and/or may void the offer to participate in this . 
Expedited' Payment Program. 

2. If, however, significant comments are received in opposition to the settlement, 
this offer tnay be withdrawn. If the San Diego Water Board enforcement staffs 
ciffer is withdrawn, Enniss, Inc. will be advised of that withdrawal, and its waiver 
pursuant to the Acceptance and Waiver.(Exhibit E) will also be treated as 
withdrawn. After the San Diego· Water Board enforcement staff's offer and 
Enniss, Inc's waiver are deemed withdrawn, the unresolved violations will be 
addressed in a formal enforcement action. ·An administrative civil liability 
complaint may be issued and the matter may be set for a hearing before the San 
Diego Water Board or the State Water Board. 

Any questions about the NOV, this conditional offer, and/or the Acceptance and 
Waiver, should be directed to Ms. Whitney Ghoram at 858-467-2967 or 
wgh·oram@waterboards.ca.gov. 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Respectfully, 

JAag/'2 
Assistant Executive Officer 

JGS:dtb:esb:wjg 

Enclosures: 

Exhibit A - Plain Language Notice 
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Exhibit B - Notice of Violation dated September 29, 2011 
Exhibit C - Inspection Record dated December 20, 2011 
Exhibit D- Water Code sections 13385 and 13399.33 

February 23, 2012 

Exhibit E- Acceptance of Conditional Resolution and Waiver of Right to Hearing; 
(Propos~d) · 

cc via email: 

David Barker, Supervising WRC Engineer, Surface Water Basins Branch, San Diego Water Board, 
dbarker@waterboards.ca.gov 

Jeremy Haas, Senior Environmental Scientist, CAU, San Diego Water Board, j!Jias@waterboards.ca.qoy 

Laura Orabandt, Staff Counsel, Office of Enforcement, S1ate Water Board, 
ldrabandt@waterboards.ca.gov 

SMARTS: 
Application 10: 291369 
ViolaUon 10: 845539 
Enforcement ID: 406484 
lnspectlon ID: 2013572 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Califo·rnia Regiona• Water Quality Control Board 
San Diego Region 

Matthew Rodrlquc 
Secnlluyfor 

Envlronmemal Pro11Cllcn 

Over 50 Years Str'Yio.g San Diego, Oraaae. ud Rlversldl! Counties 
Recipieat ofthe 2004 EnvlroomCDtal Award for OuuundiAc Achievement from lJSEPA 

Edmund c:&;:;~n,Jr. 

9174 Sky Parle: Court, Suite I 00, San Diqo, California 92123-4353 
(858) 467-2952 • Fax (858) 571-6972 
http:// www.waterbgnrsls.cuoylsanc!im 

EXHIBIT A . 

Enforcement for Failure to Submit an Annual Report 

You have until March 23, 2012, to act or face more penalties. 
Questions: Contact Ms. Whitney Ghoram (858) 467-2967 or 

wghoram@waterboards.ca.gov 

Govtnwr 

This is a plain language summary of the attached Notice of Violation and Enforcement Settlement Offer 
to Participate In an Expedited Payment Program for Failure to Submit the 201'0..2011 Annual Industrial 
Stonn Water Report, Order No. 97.03-DWQ, NPDES CAS000001. 

Enniss, Inc. is required to submit the Annual Report for coverage under Order No. 97-03-DWQ. The San 
Diego Water Board sent you a Notice of Violation on September 29, 2011 urging you to submit the Annual 
Report to avoid enforcement. To date, we have not received your Annual Report. Consequently, we are 
taking a monetary penalty enforcement action. However, instead of pursuing a formal enforcement complaint 
with higher penalties, we are offering you the opportunity to participate in an Expedited Payment Program to 
resolve the failure to submit· the report. 

You have three options to respond: 

1. Accept the Expedited Payment Program offer by submitting your Annual Report and agreeing to pay a 
settlement of $1,000. This is the fastest and most certain way to get closure on this enforcement action. 
If you choose this opUon, you must submit your Annual Report by March 23, 2012, and sign and 
submit the Acceptance and Waiver form, attached to the Enforcement Settlement Offer letter, by 
March 23, 2012. The form provides submittal instructions. Rna! closure on this action is only possible 
after ultimate submission of the settlement amount 

2. Contest the failure to submit the report by submitting in writing the basis of your challenge with 
supporting evidence. For example, you have evidence that you previously submitted your Annual Report 
If you choose this option, you must submit your challenge by March 23, 2012. 

We will review yoUr challenge, and· if we agree with you, We will notify you in writing that you are no longer 
considered in violation of the permit and our enforcement action haS been terminated. However, if we do 
not agree with _you, we will prepare a fonnal enforcement complaint at a higher doll~r amount than the 
settlement offer of $1,000. To avoid the latter, we urge you to contact Whitney Ghoram (see above) as 
soon as possible so we can assist you if you have a valid challenge. 

3. Reject the Expedited .Payment Program offer by not r.esponding or submitting your rejection In writing 
by March 23, 2012. In either case, we will prepare a formal enforcement complaint at a higher dollar 
amount than the settlement offer of $1,000. You must also submit your Annual Report. The date of 
submittal or failure to submit the Annual Report will affect th~ recommended penalty amount. 

CaUfornia Environmental Protection Agency 
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Califo_rnia Regional Water Quality Control Board 
-san ·Diego ·Region 
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Edaand G. BIVWII Jr. 
Gcnornlcr 

Manilew bclriqu~ 
Scnt.ryfor 

& Wotl-•1 ProltCIIDII bltp:/1--.~· r-o------
EXHIBITS 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
7010 1060 0000 4952 9260 

September 29, 2011 

Chad Enniss 
Enniss Inc · 
PO Box 1769 
Lakeside, CA 92040 

In reply refer to: 
WOlD #: 9 371019954 
NWU:tfellx 

Subject: NOTICE OF VIOLATION: NPDES NO. CAS000001 : ORDER NO. 97-03-
DWQ: DISCHARGER NAME: WOlD 9 371019954: FAILURE TO SUBMIT 
201o-2011 INDUSTRIAL STORM WATER ANNUAL REPORT 

Facility: Enniss Inc 
12535 Vigilante Rd 
Lakeside, CA 92040 

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: 

You are In violation of the statewide General Industrial Storm. Water Permit Order 
No. 97-03-DWQ (Order) for failure to submit the 2010-2011 Annual Report. The 
Annual Report was due to the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San 
Diego Region (San Diego Water Boa~) by July 1, 2011 as required by Section B.14 of 
the Order. 

Pursuant to California Water Code (CWC) Sections 13399.31-33, and 13385, your 
failure to submit the Annual Report sobjects you to possible enforcement action by the 
San Diego Water Board. Ci.vil liability could range from a minimum of $1,000 and up to 
$10,000 a day for each day of-violation, or up ·to $25,000 -a day If the llabfrtty is 
assessed by a court. You may also be·subject to criminal penalties under Section 
13387 of the ewe. The number of days of violation would be counted from July 1, 
2011, up to the date the 2010-2011 Annual Report Is received. To minimize the 
potential liability assessed, please submit the Annual Report immediately. Submit 
online in SMARTS or mail the Annual Report to the address at the top of this page, 
attention Tony Felix. 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Enniss lnc -2- September 29, 2011 
Notice of VIOlation 

If you have any questions pertaining to-the submission of the Annual Report, and or the 
issuance ~f this NOV, please contact Tony Felix at (858) 636-3134, or by email at . 
tfelix@waternoards.ca.gov. If you feel you have received this NOV In error, please 
contact our office immediately. 

RE~~ 
David Barker, P .E. 
Supervlslng Water Resources Control Engineer 
Surface Water Basins Branch 

DTB:esb:pab 

SMARTS· 
VIOlation 10 

Enforcement 
10 

845539 

406484 

California Enl'ironmental Prot8ction Agency 
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·- · ............_ .. ~ .. - ·-- - .,._". 
EXHIBIT C 

Storm Water Industrial General Permit Inspection Record 

Insp. Date: December 20, 2011 Inspected By: Whitney Ghoram 

' 
WDID# 9 371019954 SMARTS Inspection # 2013572 

Operator Name: Eric Enniss, Owner, Enniss, Inc. 

Facility Name: Enniss, Inc. 

Facility Address: 12535 Vigilante Road, Lakeside, CA 92040 .. 

Facility Contact Chad Enniss, OWner 

nspectlon Summary I Comments: 
The Ennis Inc. facility was inspected as a follow -up on the failure to submit the 2010-11 Annual 
Industrial Stonn Water (ISW) Report and the failure to respond to the Notice of VIOlation (NOV) dated 
9/29/11 addressing tlie delinquent Annual ISW Report. ·During the inspection, I notified Eric Enniss, 
the facility owner, of his failure to submit the 2010-11 AnnuaiiSW Report. Mr. Enniss indicated that a 
copy of the Annual ISW Report would be sent to the San Diego Water Board office by 12/22/11. 

The industrial facility runs the length of a couple of blocks along Vigilante Road. The first entrance 
from Vigilante Road is to a lot containing Minshew Brothers trucks. During the inspection, I observed 
a flatbed truck with two gas tanks, gas pump hoses, and dispenser handles. This equipment was 
loose on the flatbed of the truck and I smelled gasoline. I advised Mr. Enniss to implement corrective 
actions to ensure that the gas tanks and related equipment are not exposed to storm water. Industrial 
activities conducted at the facUlty Include truck maintenance and materials processing & sales of 
asphalt, top soil, sand, and gravel. 

SMARTS Violation #845539. 
SMARTS Enforcement #406484 

Records: 
No Records were reviewed during the inspection. 

Signature f/;t;- k Date .:>. ~~3 ~I I-
Date Entered: _12120/11_ 

Entered By: W Ghoram 

Senior Revi~: 6 S~ 
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(B) Applicable water quality objectives md crituia 
established in ae«rdance with the n:giona.l board besin 
plans, statewide plans, and federal re&uJation!. 

(F) Repom and stodies regarding ~ contribution .of 
pollotants in runoff not based on direct water quality 
measurements. 

(d) The requirements prescribed pursuant to this section 
shall be included in all storm water pennits for~ 
mw'lieipalitics and industries that are reissued following 
development of the requirements described in subdivision 
(o). Those permits shall include these ~ovisions on or 
before July 1, 2008. In a year in which the Legislature 
appropriates lllflicient funds for that purpose. the ·state 
board shall make available to the public via the Internet a 
summa:y of the results obtained from storm water 
motlitoJ'ina conducted in aecordance with this section.. 

§ 13383.6. School educational materials required by 
mWiicipal stonmrater pel'lllits 

On and after J8Jll41ll)' l, '1IXn. if a regioo3l board or the 
state board issues 8 mlD'Iicipal stmmwater pemrit p.liSWUt 
to Section 402(p) or tbo Clean W81er Aa (33 u.s.c. Sec. 
l342(p)) that includes a requirement to JI'OYide 
elementary tnd see<:lldary public schooh with cducationa1 
mataials ~ stounwatc:r pollmian, tbe pcrmittM may 
satisfy the requirement. upon approval by 1he xegicma} 
board or state board. by cootribul:iJii an equivalent 
amounLof funds 10 the Environmental BQy:stjoo Aticouot. 
established pursvani to subdivision (a) of Section 71305 
of the Public R.elcnz'ces Code. 

§ 13383.7. Guidance on quant.if"table efl"ediveneuof 
municipalltorm water prorms 

(a) No later than July 1, 2009, and after holciq public 
wotXshops and soliciting public comments. 1he state 
board shaU dovelop a comprehensive guidance document 
for evaluating and measuring the effectiveness of 
municipal stoanwater managcmc:nt programs uru:lartab:n. 
and permits mu.ed, in accordance with Secticn ~)of 
tho Oean Water A~ (33 U.S.C. Sec. 1342(p)) and this 
division. 

(b) For the purpose of implementing subctivisicn (a), the 
state board sball promotz: the use of quantifiable mea.suns 
Cor mluating the effectivmess of municipal stomrwater 
management programs and provide for the evaluation o4 
at a minimutD, an of the following: 

(I) Compliance with slDrmwatcr pcunitting rcquirancnts. · 
including aU of tho following: 

(A) INpection programs. 

(B) Constru!:tion controls. 

(C) Blim ination of unlawful discharges. 

Rev. ~·11-2010 -56-

(D) Pub tic education programs. 
EXHIBITD 

(B) New development and redevelopment reqwremcnts.. 

(2).Rtduction of poDutmt loads from polluticn sources. 

(3) Reduction of pollutants or stream erosion due to 
stcl'mWater discharge. 

(4) Improvements in fhe quality of reoeWing water in 
aeeordance with water quality standards. 

(c) Tb.e state board and the regional boards shaU refer to 
the guid4mce document tleveloped pursuant to subdivision 
(a) when establishiDg requirements in mw'licipal 
atmnwatcrpr-ograms end permits. · 

§ 13383.8. Sioi'Diwater management task force 
(a) The state boc:d shall appoint 8 stmmwater 
management task force c:omprised or public agencies. 
rqnsc:ntatives of the ·regulated community, and nonprofit 
argaaizstioos with expertise in water quality md 
stormwater manaaement The task force shall proridc 
.Moe to the state 'bolrd bn its stcmw.ater management 
posram that may include. but is not limited to, proersm 
pricl:itie!, 1'\lndq criteriA. project selection, and 
inimgency. coc:rdinatian af st8ie JrOgnUDS that address 
:Stamwater JIJ8JliJICDicrL 

(b) The statz: board shall .sabmit~ report, incl!Xting. bu1 
not limited to, stomrwater and other pollDtcd runoff' 
control m!onnatian, to the Ocean Protection Council no 
Liter than Jammy 1, 2009, on 1be way in which the state 
board is implemcriling 1M priority .goals and objectives of 
the council's stratz:gic plan. 

. § 13384 . .Hearinp · 
Tho state board or the re;io:nal boards shall ensure 'that 
the public, and that any other state, the waters of which 
may be affected by any di.seharge of pollaamts or dredged 
or .611 material to navigable waters within this state, shall 
receive notice of each application for requirements or 
report of waste discharge ar application for a dredged or 
fill material permit or report of dredged or fil1 material 
discbarae mel lll'C proyided an opportunJ;y far public 
bearing before adoption of such requin:ments or pennit.. 

§ 13385. Civil liability 
(a) Awjf:. ~ who vio1Et1es any of the following sba11 
be liable civilly in accordaDce willllhis section: 

(1) Section 13375 or 13376. 

(2) AftrA waste disc:harxe n~t""'-•ltt!!regujremynt a 
dredged or fill material permit issued ptu'SUaDl to this 
chapter or any water quality certification issued pursuant 
to Section 13160. 



PoR.TBR-CoLOONE W A. TEl\ QUALITY CoNTR.OL ACT (CAL. W A.TER CooB, DMSION 1) EFmCJ'MS JANUARY 1, 2011 

(3) ,"Jny FtEfQiAmentsA reqpjrmpsnt established pi.IISU8nt 
to Sectionl3383. 

( 4) Alt!j~ order or prohibition issued pursuant to 
Section 13243 or Artio~e t (commencing with Section 
13300) of Chapter 5, if'the activity subject to the order or 
prohibition is subject to regulation undec t1m chapter. 

(5) ~· !BftWiamlellfeA regujrementof Section 30l, 302, 
306,307, 308, 318, '401, or 405 of the Clean Water Act, 
as amended. 

(6) Awf'A requirement imposed in a pretreabnent 
program approved pursuant to waste discharge 
requirements issued under Section 133n or approved 
pursuant to a permit issued by the achninistratm. 

(b) Civ~lliability may be impOsed by the superior court in 
an amount not. to exceed 1hc sum of both of the following: 

(1) Twenty-five thousand dolia.rs ($25,000) for -each day 
in which the.violation pccurs. 

(2) Where there is a disCharge. any portion of which is not 
susceptible to cleanup or is not cleaned up, and the 
volume discharged but not cleaned up exceeds 1,000 
gallons, an additional liability not to exceed tweoty-five 

. dollars (S25) multiplied by the number of gallons by 
which the volume discharged but not cleaned up cxcee~ 
1,000 gallons. 

The Attorney General upon request of a regial81 board or 
the state board. shall petition the superior court to impcise 
the liability. 

(c) Civil liability may be imposed administmtively by ·the 
state board or a regional board puml8tlt to Article 2.5 
(commencing with Section 13323) of Chapter 5 in an 
amoWlt not to exceed the sum of both of the following: 

(1) Ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each day in which 
the violation occurs. 

(2) Where there is a discharge. any portion of which is oot 
susceptible to cleanup or is not cleaned up, and the 
volume di!chqed but not cleaned up exceeds 1,000 
gallons, an additional liability not to exceed ten dollars 
(SlO) multiplied by tho number of gallons by which the 
volume di.sc~ed but not cleaned up exceeds 1.000 
gallons. 

(d) For purposes of subdivisions (b) and (c), ~'discharge" 
· includes any discharge to navigable waters of the United 
States, any introduction of pollutants into a publicly 
owned treatment woW, or any use or disposal of sewage 
sludge. 

(e) In determining the amount of any liability imposed 
under this section. the regional board, the state board, or 
the superior court. as the esse may be.. shall take into 
Rev. 9-17-2010 -57-

ecccunt the nature, circumstances, exten1, and gravity of 
the violation or violations, whc1ber the discharge is 
susceptible to cleanup-or abatement, the degree of toxicity 
of the discharge, and, with respect to the violator, tho 
ability to pay, the effect on its ability .to continue its 
buSiness, any vohmta.ty cleanup efforts undertaken, any . 
prior history of violaticos, the degree of culpability, 
ccoriomic benefit or savings. if an}!. resulting from tho 
viQlation, and other. matters that j:ustice may require. At a 
minimum, Liability shall be assessed at a level that 
recovers the economic ben.efits, if any, derived from the 
acts that coostib.lt.e the vjolation. 

(f)(l) Except as provided in paragraph (2), for the 
purposes of Ibis section, a single operational upset that 
leads to simultaneous violations of more than one 
pollutant parameter shall be treated as a single violation. 

(2XA) For the purposes of subdivisions (h) and (i), a 
si.Dgle opealtional upset in a wasttlWall:r treatment unit 
that tzeats wastewater using a biological 'treatment process 
shall be treated as a single violation, even if the 
operational upset resuhs in violations of more than one 
effluent limitation and the violations continue for a period 
of more than one day, if all of the following apply: 

(i) The discharger demonstrates all of the following: 

(I) The upset was not caused by wastewater treatment · 
opentor error and was not due to .discharger negligence. 

(II) But for tb.e operational upset of the biological 
treatment process. the violations would not have occurred 
nor would they have continued (ormore.tbanone day. 

(III) The discharger caxricd out all . reasonable and 
immediately feasible actio:ns to reduce noncompliance 
withthe.applioablc effluent limitations. 

(u) The discharger is implementing an approved 
pretreatment program, if so required by federal or state 
law. 

{B) Su~ph (A) only applies to violations tllatoccur 
during a period for which the regional board has 
c1etmnincd that violations are unavoidable, but in no case 
may that p8riod exceed 30 days. 

(g) Remedies wxler this section are in addition to, and do 
not supersede. or limit, any other remedies, civil or 
criminal, mtccpt that no liability shall be recoverable 
under Section 13261, 13265, 13268, or 13350 for 
violations for which liability is recovered under this 
section. 

(h)(l) Notwithstanding · any other provision of this 
division, and except as provicled in subdivisions 0), (lc), 
and (1), a mandatory minimum penalty of three thousand 
dol.lars ($3,000) shall be assessed for each serious 
violation. 
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(2) For the JUPOSCS of this section. a "serious violation" 
means any waste discharge that violates the effluent 
limitations contained in the applicable waste cliscbarge 
requiremenls for a Group TI pollutant, as specified in 
Appendix A to Section 123.45 ofTitle 40 of the Code of 
Federal Regulat.itms, by 20 percent or more o: for a Group 
I pollu!an.t, as specified in Appendix A to Section 123.45 
of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, by 40 
percent or more. 

(i)(l) Notwithstanding any other. provision of this 
division, and except as provided in subdivisions (j), (k), 
and (I), a mandatory minimum penalt;y of 1hree thousand 
dollm ($3,000) shall be assessed for each violation 
whenever the person· does any of the following four or 
more times in my period of six consecutive months. 
except that the requirement to assess the mo.ndatoiy 
minimum penalty shall not be applicable to the first three 
violations: 

('10 Violates a waste discharge requirement effluent 
limitation. 

(B) Fails to file a report pursuant to Section 13260. 

(C) Files an incomplete report pursuant to Section 13260. 

(D) Violates a toxicity effiucnt limitation ·comaiDed in the 
applicable waste ,discharge requirements where tbe waste 
.discharge requirem~ do not contain pollutmtt-specific 
effluent limitations for toxic pollutants. 

(2) For the purposes of this section, a "period of six 
consecutive months" means.the period oommencing an 
the date that one of the violations described in this 
subdivision occurs and ending 180 'clays after that date. 

(j) Subdivisions (.h) an4 (i) do not apply to any of tQe 
followilg: 

(1) A violation caused by one cr any combination of the 
following: 

(A) An act of war. 

(B) An unanticipated, grave natural disaster or other 
natural phenomenon· of an 'exceptional. inevi18ble, and 
irresisnble character, ~ effects of which could not have 
been prevented or avoided by the exercise of due care or 
foresight 

(C) An intentional act of a third party, the effects of which 
could not have been prevented or avoided by the exercise 
of due care or foresight 

(D)(i) The operation of a new or reconstructed wastewater 
treatment unit during a defined period of adjusting or 
testing, not to exceed 90 days for a wastewater treatment 
unit that relies on a biological treatment process and not 
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to exceed 30 days for any other wastewater treatment tmit, 
if all of the following requirements are met: 

(I) The dischatger has submitted to the regional board. at 
least 30 days in advance of the operation, an operations 
plan that describes the actions the discharger will take 
during the period of adjusting and testing, incl~ steps 
to prevent violations and idc:ntifies the shortest reasonable 
time required for the period of adjusting and testing. not 
to exceed 90 days for a wastewater treatment unit that 
relies on a biological treatment process and not to exceed 
30 days for any othc:r wastewater treatment unit. 

(II) The regional board has not objected in writing to the 
operations plan 

(III) T:he discharger demonstrates that the violations 
resulted from the operation of the new or reconstructed 
wastewater treatment unit and that the viOlations could 
notlmve reasonably been avoided. 

(IV) The .discharger demonstrates compliance with the 
· operations plan 

(V) In the case of $ reconstructed wastewater treatment 
unit. the lmit relies on a biological treatment process that 
is required to be·out of operation for at least 14 days in 
order to perfqnn the-reconstruction, or the unit is required 
to be out of operation for at least 14 day.s and, at the time 
of the reconsll'Uction, the cost of reccmstructing the unit 
exc~ 50 percent of'the cost of replaciDg the wastewater 
treatment unit 

· (it) For the puipOSeS of this section. "wastewater 
treatment unit" means a com~ of a wastewater 
treatment plant that perfonns a· designated treatment 
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(2XA) Except as JX'OVided in subparagraph (B), a 
violaticm of an effiuent limitation whore the waste 
discharge is in compliance with either a cease and desist 
order issued pursuant to Section 13301 or a time schedule 
order issued pursuant to Section 13300, if all of the 
following requirements are met: 

(i) The cease and desist order or time schedule order is 
issued after Jmu.ary 1, 1995. but not later than July 1, 
2000, specifies the actions that the discharger is required 
to take in erder to correct the violations that would 
otherwise be subject to subdivisions (.h) and (i). end the 
date by which compliance is required to be achieved and, 
if the final date by which compliance is required to be 
achieved is later than one year from the effective date of 
the cease and desist order or time schedule order, 
specifies the interim reqlrirements by which. progress 
towards compliance will be measured and the date by 
which. the discharger will be in compliance with each 
interim requirement 
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(u) The disoharger has prepared and is implementing in a 
timely and proper manner, <r is required by the Iegiona1 
board to prepare and implement. a pollution prevention 
plan that meets the requirements of·Section 13263.3. 

(iii) The discharger demonstrates that it has cani.ed out all 
reasonable and immediately ·feasible actions to reduce 
noncompliance with the waste dischmge requirements 
applicable to the'WI!Ste discharge' and the executive officer 
of the regional ~ COilCUrS'with the demoostralion. 

(B) Subdivisions (h) and (i) shaH become applicable to a 
waste discharge on the date the waste discharge 
requirements !iPPlicable to the waste discharge are revised 

. and reissued pursuant to Seotion 13380, unless ·tne 
regional board does all of the f<1llowing on or before that . 
date: 

(i) Modifies the requirements of the cease and desist crder 
or time schedule order as may be necesS8l)l to make it 
full.Y consistent with the reissued waste di.sch8rgc 
requirements. 

(u) Establishes in the modified cease and desist order or 
time schedule order a date by which full compliance with 

. the reissued waste discharge rCqulrcments shall be 
achieved. For the pUrposes of this subdivisicm. the 
regional board may not establish this date later than five 
years from the date the waste discharge rcquir011lents 
were required to be reviewed pursuant to· Section 13380. 
Jf the reissued waste discharge rcquircmc:nts do not add 
rew effluent limitations or do not include- effluent 
limitations lhal. are ·more stringent fban those in the 
original waste di.schsrge teqUin:ments, the date shall 'be 
the same as the final date for compliance in the original 
cease aod desist order or time schedule order or five years 
from the date that the waste discharge requirements were 
required to be reviewed pursuant to Section 13380, 
whichever is earlier. 

(w) Determines that the pol.luticn prevention plan 
required by clauso (li) of subpamgraph (A) is in 
compliance with the requRII'Ients of Section 13263.3 and 
that the discharger is implementing the pollution 
prevention plan in a timely and proper manner. 

(3) A violation of an efiluerit limitation whore tho waste 
discharge is in compliance with either a cease and desist 
order issued pursuant to Section 13301 or a time scbcdule 
order .issued pursuant to Section 13300 or 13308. if all of 
the following rcquirernc:nts are met 

(A) The cease and desist orclcr or time schedule order is 
issued on or after JulY 1, 2000. and specifJ.CS the actions 
that the discharger is required to take in order t<S correct 
the violations that would otherwise be subject to 
subdivisions (h) and(i). 

(B) The regional board finds that, for one of the followq 
rcasoils, the discharger is not able to consistently compJy 

with one or more of the effiucntlimitations established in 
the wasto d.iscllazse requirements applicable to the waste 
discharge: 

(i) The effluent limitation is a new, more stringent, or 
modifi.Cd regulatory requirement that has become 
applicable to the waste discharge afler the effective dale 
of the· waste discharge requiremc:nts and aftCr July 1, 
2000, new ormodified control measures are nc:cessary in 
order to comply with the effluent limitation, and the new 
or modified control measures C8J:Ul0l be designed, 
installed, and put into operation within 30 calendar days. 

(ii) New methods for detecting or measuring a pollutant in 
the waste' discharge demonstrate that new or modjfied 
'COiltrnl measures are nccessscy in order to comply with 
tho effluent limitation md the new or modified control 
measures camot be designed, in.stallcd. and put into 
operation within 30 calendar days. 

(tii) Unanticipated changes in the quality of the municipal 
or industrial water supply available to the discharger arc 
the cause of unavoidable changes in the composition of 
the waste discharge, the changes in the composition· of the 
waste d.iscluu:ge are the cause of tho inability to comply 
with-the effluent limitation, no alternative water supply is 
reasonably available to the discllarger, and new or 
modified measures to control tho compositian of the 

· waste discharge cannot be designed, installed, and put · 
into operation within'30 calendar days. 

(1V) The d.iscllarger is a publicly owned· treatment works 
located in Orange County that is unable to meet effluent 
limitatioos for bioiogical oxygen. demand. suspended 
solids, or both. because the plblicly owned treatment 
works meets all of the .following criteria: 

(l) Was previously operating under modified secondary 
treatment requirements pursuant to Section 30l(h) of tte 
Cl.ean.W&ter Act(33 U.S.C. Sec. 1311(h)~. 

(ll) Did vote on July 17, 2002. not to apply for a renewal 
of the modified scconc!$ry ~atment requirements. 

(lli) Is in the process of upgrading its trealment facilities 
to m.eet the sec:ondan' treatment standards required by 
Section 30l(b){l)(B) of the Cleao Watm Al:.t (33 U.S.C. 
Sec. 13ll(b)(l)(B)). 

(CUi) Ihe regionai board c:stsblisbes. a time schedule for 
bringin& the wasle disohargo into complisnce with tho 
effiucntlimitation .that is as short as possible, taking into 
acCOl.Dlt . the technological. operational, and economic 
factors that affect the design. development, and 
implementation of the control measures that are necessary 
to camp!y with the effluent limitation. ~Q!lnt us 
pmyid¢ jp slauss @ for the purposes of this 
subdivision, the time schedule ~ not exceed five 
years in length; IIIW9\ IAH tAa lima aalieliwla Rl~' aet 
Mia a a(!! 10 YII&RI iB leagtb feE: • 
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@ ill For PW'OOSes of the upgaKle described in 
subclause (III) of clause (iv) of subparagraph (B) tJ;!p tjme 
scbedn!s sboll not gceed l 9 yews in lmgth 

ffi) Eollgwjpg o puhljc hearipg A!ld upon s sbgwing that 
the discbamg is -malcipg di'igent mpm$i tgward 
bringjng the Waste djsqharge jnt.o complimce with the 
effluent !imip¢iog the regjgne,] bosrd mw mnd the 
tjme scb;dule fgr AD uddjtiQQ81 wjgd oot gxpe;djpg fve 
yem in lepgth jf the dil!Gmsr dgmonslrBta th!!t the 
a4ditigpal time js negessary to cOmpJv wjth thp ;musnt 
!jmjtution This subglf!W!p dpes pot apply to 11 time 
schesiu!e described in subclause m. 

..(!W If the time schedule exceeds one year from the 
effective date of the order, the schedule shall include 
interim requirements ;and ihe dates for their achievement 
The interim requirements shall include both of the 
following: 

(.t,I) Effiucnt limitations for the pollulant or poDutants of 
concc:m. 

(HJI) Actions and milestones leading to COJllPliance with 
the effluent limitation. 

(I?) The discharger has prepared an4 is impleme_nting in.a 
thnely and proper manner, or is required by the regional 
board to prepare and implement a pollution prevention 
plan pW'SU81lt to Seeti<llll32633. 

(.kX1) In lieu of assessing all or a portion of the 
mandatory minimum penahies purm.mt to suQdivisians 
(h) and (i) against a publicly owned trea1ment works 
serving a small community, the state board or the regional 
board may elect to require the :p1blicly owned treatment 
works to spend an equivalent amOIII'l;t towards the 
completion of .a compliance proJect proposed by the 
publicly owned treatment worlc.s, if th6 state board or the 
regional board finds all of the following: 

(A) The cOmpliance project iS designed to correct tb,e 
violations within five years. 

(B) The compliance project is in accordance with the 
enforcement policy ,of the state board, excluding any 
provision in the policy that is inconsistent with this 
section. 

(C) The publicly owned treatment works has prepared a 
financing plan to complete the compliance project. 

(2) For the pw:poses of this subdivision. "a publicly 
owned treatment works serving a smell communitY'' 
means a publicly owned treatment woncs serving 8 

population of 10,000 persons or fewer or a rural county, 
with a fmancial hardship as dctennined by the state board 
after considering such factcn as median income of the 
residents, rate of unemployment, or low popullltion 
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density in the service area of the publicly owned 
treatment works. 

(!) (I) In lieu of assessing penalties pursuant to 
subdivision (h) or (i), the state board or the regional 
board, with the conc:urrence of the discharger, may direct 
a portion of the penalty amount to be expended on a 
supplemental environmentBl project in accordance with 
the enforcement policy of the state board. If the penalty 
amount ex.ceeds fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000), the 
portion of the penall;y amount that may be directed to be 
expended on a supplemental environmental project may 
not exceed fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) plus 50 
percent of the penalty amount that exceeds fifteen 
thousand dollars ($15,000) . 

(2} For the ·purposes of this section, a "supplemental 
envir~cntal project" means an environmentally 
beneficial project that a person agrees to undertake, with 
the approval of the regional board, that would not be 
undertaken in 1he absence of an enforcement action under 
this section. 

(3) This subdivisicn applies to the imposition of penalties 
pursuant to subdivision (h) or (i) on or after Janl181)' 1, 
2003, without regard to the date on which the violation 
occurs. 

(m) The Attorney General, upon request of a regional 
board or the state board, shall petition the appropriate 
court tO·collect any liability or penalty imposed pursuant 
to this section. Any person wlxl fails to pay on a. timely 
basis my liability or penalty imposed under this· section 
shall be required to pay, in .additim 10 that liability or 
penalty, interest, attomey's fees, costs for collection 
proceedings, and a quarterlY. nmpayment penalty for each 
quarter ~ which the failure 10 pay persists. The 
nonpayment penalty shall be in an amount equal to 20 
percent of the aggregate amount of the person's penalty 
snd nonpayment penalti.e& that are unpaid as of the 
beginning of the quarter. 

(n) (1) Subject to paragraph (2), funds collected :p1rsuant 
to this section shall be deposited in the State Water 
Pollution Cleanup and Abatement Account. 

(2) (A) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, 
moneys collected far a violation of a water quality 
certification in .accordance with paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (a) or for a violation of Section 401 of the 
Clean Water Act· (33 U.S.C. Sec. 1341) in accordance 
with paragmph (5) of subdivision (a) shaD be deposited in 
the Waste Discharge Permit Fund and separately 
accounted for in that fund 

(B) The ftmd3 descn"bed in subpamgraph (A) shall be 
expended by the state board, upon appropriation by the 
Legislature, to assist regional boards, and other public 
agen::ies with authority to clean up waste or abate the 
effects of the waste, in cleaning up or abating the effects 
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of the waste on watm of the state or far the purposes 
authorized in Section 13443. 

(o) The state boaro shall continuoosly report and update 
infonnntion on its Internet Web site, but at a minimum, 
annually on or before Januacy 1, regarding its 
enforcement activities. The information shall include all 
oftbc following: 

(l) A compilation of the number of violatiODS of waste 
discharge requirements in the JrCVious calendar yea:r., 
including stormwater enforccment violations. 

(2) A record of the fonnal and informal compliance and 
enforcement actions taken for each violation, inclucting 
stonnwater enforcement actiens. 

(3) An analysis of the cfiectiveness of current 
enforcement policies. including mandatary minimum 
penalties. 

(p) The amendments made to subdivisions (3. (h), (i) and 
G) during the second yea:r. of the 2001..02 Regular Session 
sppJy·only to violations that occur on or after January l, 
2003. 

§ 13385.1. Definitions of "serious violation" and 
"effiuent limitation" 

(a) (1) For .the purposes of subdivision (h) of Sectjon 
13385, ·a "serious violation" also means a failure to file a 
discharge monitoring report required pursuant to Section 
13383 for eacl! complete period of 30.days following the 
deadline for s\.bmitting 1he report. .if the report is designed 
to ensure compliance with limitati~ contained in waste 
dischmge ~ent:s tbat · contain effiuent 
limitations.~ Pamg!oaJ!h 0~ Thjs mmgmph applies anly 
to violations that occur on or after Januacy 1, 2004. 

(2) CAl NQLWjlh§!gndjng pammPh (!) !\ firi!urp to file a 
disch!!We monitqing. report j; pgt g wjgus yjo!!ltiw fqr 
purpose pf Wxiiyisian (h) pf SscrlO!l 1 :P8:5 at AJliJ timp 
mioc tn the stare ' di;;chDme mooitqring report js rqrujrpd 
to be fi1ed gr witbin 3D qw3 afiQr meiying writ!Gn potjcp 
frgm tba sprt; board qr !l. mgjgpul boord pf tbe nsed·tg filp 
D disotwggmgnitprjng W?rn1; jftbe dischacgq MmjtA 8 

writt;n @lQplept lp fhe slat; Jxwd QT the regjpm! board 
that inc!udqs lpth gf tbe follgwing 

CA A §1pts;ment that tbc;rs wers no di)clmrg;s tg W!!tm pf 
the Unjted SWe mpgrtab'Je ynd;r tbe awlicab!p WI§Se 
discharge requirement;; dprjP!! tbe re!eymrt monjtprjng 
mg. 

@ Ibp (9MW qr fW9ll§ tbp repujred tmgrt WM pdf 
wbmjttr&! lQ tbe re¢!?P!!l bqard by the p;adline for fi)jng 
tbatrmgrt 
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(B')JJppp tbp r;gus;t gf (be $$ bowp qr r;;gig! boor4 
tbe djmrgsr mq be mquiq;d re !i!l1lP9U the §!§tt;mppt 
wi!h additjsgl el¢1anation or qyjdepce 

CC) It in a :rtptpment·submitted QUJ§Uant to subnamgmQh 
(A) tbe discburger willfully §!Btes AS truE any material 
fact tbat he gr M; knows te ha false that, persgn shall be 
subject tg g givj! peno!ty not exgs;edjpg ten thous!!Pd 
dollgrn CSlO QQQl Any whljg pmyeJlEr may bring an 
actjon fw 1 civj! pgrw1ty updg tbjs spbpm"B'anh in tbe 
naroe pf tbs pegple of lh' Stite of ealifqmig apd the 
pepaJtv jmpgsesi shall be enfqu;sQ asp civil judgment 

(D) Notwitbstsruling subparagraph fA), the failure to file 
a dischve mgojtpring repgrt is subiect rp pepalti;s· in 
!IC90lJ:!mce wjlh subs!ivi§ism (g) apd (el of Sectigp 
~ 

(b) (l)Notffithst.andjng pamgnmb £1) gfsvbdiyjsjgn Cal 
a mmdgmrv minimum penalty stsJJ continue to app1y aog 
shall be mew l?W§)]BPt to subsliyisjon (h) of Sectjon 
13385 but gnly for ooch requires! repgrt tbatis nottjmely 
fi!¢ und shall ngt he swmt;N W'Wed for each 30-day 
period fg!!pwing thq rlqadlipq fgr submitting the rmgg jf 
bo!h of the following cgndition§ m met' 

(A) Thp discmer did ngt on any gccasjon myiguslv 
reg;i.xe frpm the stBte b9ard gr a rpgionaL board. a 
complgint tg impgse liabilitv PUWL!lllt tg subdjyjsipn (b) 
or (c) qf SectiPn 13385 ·11.risjng frgm a fBjlwe tg timq!y 
file a dj;ghprse mopjtgtipg mpgrt p potjse ofyjo!ation fgr 
fai!ura tp tjm;ly file a disctwge mgpjtpripg repgrt gr g 
pgtjqs gf the AA!jgatjgp tg file a djgJmge monjtgrjng 
repgrt reguimi purspant to §egtjon ]3383 in csmnestign 
wjtb its cormpgprling waste djj«;hargs rppuiremept§ 

(B) Thp djscbprgcs duriw thp period qr p;iosis.coyerqi 
by thg repgrt dq ngtyjolat& gftlwmt Hmjqrtjqm M defm;d 
jp subdjyjsjgp Cdl cgplpjped jp wQ$ disoh8!'He 
regujrema 

(2) ·Pmgrsyh ill shall onlY aPPly to a djschargcr who 
dges bqtb gf!he following; 

CA) Fjlos 11 djscbarge msmjterjps g;pgrt that bad not 
mwiOW!Iv WP timelY filM within JO sk'YS !l.ftpr thE 
diMh-M mcgjYQs wjttcp ngtjge jpduding pgtjcs 
t:gm!jJDjttM by q!pctmpic rn11H fmm thQ :;tate bqlrd gr 
regioon! bo!!t'rl ggngeming thp miluro to timelY file the 

~ 

CB'J ]?pvs aJJ p;pa)ties A!i!!G$1Pd by fbe Sl!!lr bows! W 
regiQD!!I bO!I[d in accordgpCE wjtb pmmnh {]) wjtbjn 30 
days sftq pn grd;r js .jSsu;d tg my tbgse PSI!Bities 
pupruapt tg Sqctjpn 13385 

m Notwjtb$mdips parngraph CD tbs rw!ws to file g 
dj§Cbwpe moojtpring report is rubjGct to penaltj;s ip 

Bscgrd!JI!ce wjth §Ubdiyi:dons (c) and fa) of Sq;tjpn 

~ 



PORTER·COLOONEWATER QUALITY CONTROl.ACT(CAL. WATER. CODE, DIVISION 7) EFFECTIVE JANUARY J, 2011 

§ !3399.27. Reports 
On or before February I, 2000. and on each February I 
thereafter, . the s:tate board. after any nc:cessary 
investigation, shan prepare, and make available to the 
public, a report that includes both of the following: 

(a) A lis! of those per$0US that were notified of their duty 
to comply with applicable general SIOrm water NPDES 
permits pursuant to Section 13399.30 and a description of 
tht: responses received 10 those notifications, illcluding the · 
filing of notices of intent to obtain coverage or notices of 
nonapplicability, returned mail and no resp~ appeals 
of filing or pettnitting requirements pursWIIlt to this 
chf.ptet. site ins-pecotions, enforcement actions t&la:n, and 
penalties assessed therefor. 

(b) A list of those dischargers identified pursuant to 
Sectiotl 1339931. that, during the previous t:a.lendar year, · 
failed to submit 8Il annual report or construction 
certification required by a regional board, and any 
penalties assessed !Derefor. 

§ 13399.30. Identification ol cllscbargers 
(aXI) Each year the re,ional boards chan undertake 
reasonable efforts to identify dischargers of stonn water 
that bave not obaaincd coverage under m appropriate 
storm ~r NPDES permit. · · 

(2) Any person, including a person subject to waste 
disclial'ge. requirementS under Section 1342(p) of Tide 33 
of the United States Code, tbat discharges, pioposes to 
discharge, or is suspected by a regional board or the state 
board of dischatgiug storm water associated with 
industrial activity that bas not obtained coverage llllder an 
appropriate storm water NPDES pcrmil, shall submit 10 
the regional board, Within 30 days from the date on which 
a ~otic:e is . sent by thG regional board, the appropriate. 
notice of tntent to obtain coverage or a aotice of 
nonapplicability that specifies the basis for not needing to 
obtaiD coverage under an NPDES permit 

(b) If a person to which a notice is seat pursuant to 
subdivision .<•> fails to submit the appropriate notiCe: of 
intenc to obtain coverage or the required notice of 
nonapplicability 10 the regional board within 30 days from 
the date on which tbat notice is sent, the executive officer 
of the regional board shall send a second notice to that 
discharger. 

(c)(~).'~ a person _to '!fhic:h a ,notice is sent pursuant to 
subdivtSJOn (b) fads to submit the required notice of 
nonapplicability to :the regional board within 60 days from 
the date on which the notice pursuant to subcfiVision (a) 
was sent. th.e regional board shall impose the penalties 
described in subdivision (b) of Section 13399.33. 

(2) If a person to which a no~ice is sent pursuant to 
subdivision (b) fails to submit the required notice ofintcnt 
to obtain coverage to the regionaJ board within 60 days 
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from the date on which tbe notice pursuant to subdivision 
(a) was ~t. the ~~i?D"I board shall impose.the penalties 
d~cribed m subd1vts1on (a) ofSection 13399.33. 

§ 13399.31. Notice ofnoneompliuce 
(a) Each year the regional board shall cooducc a rt:view 
of the annual reports and construction certificatiom 
submitted in accordance wjth the requirements of an· 
applicable NPDES permit and Section 1342(p) of Title 33 
o~ · the United States Code and shall identify the 
disc~~ that ~ave ~lled to .submit that Bimual report or 
construction cc:rtdicabon requued by the regicmal board. 

.(b) 'J_be regional board shall notify each discharger that is 
uientified pursuant to subdivision (a) with regard to its 
noocompliance and the penalties therefor. 

(c) If a discharger to which a notice is sent pursuant to 
subdivision (b) .faUs to submit the annual report or 
construction certi1ic:aticm required by the regional board 
to the regional board within 30 days from the date on 
wbic:b that nonce is sent, the executive officer of the 
regional board sbaU send a second nodce to that 
discharger. . 

(d) If a discharger to which a notice is sent pllmlant to 
subdivisicm (c) fails to submit 1he annual report or 
construction certification required by the regional board 
to the regional board witl:\in 60 days from the date on 
whiell the notice is sent pumtant to subdivision {b), the 
!CJional board aball impose the penalties dc:scn'bed in 

.subdivision (c) of S~lion 13399.33. 

§ 13399.33. Penalties 
Except as provided in Section 13399.35, the regional 

board shaU do all of the fotlowing with regard to a 
discbarger that is subject to the req'Direments prescribed in · 
eccordance with Section 1342(p) of Title 33 of the United 
States Code: 

(a)(l) With regard to a discharger of ato.rrn water 
associated with industrial activity that fails to submit the 
required notice of intent to obtain coverage it1 accordance 
with Section 13399.30, impo~ civil liability 
adminiatntively in an amount th.at is not less than five 
thousand dollars (SS.OOO) per year of nClllCCinfpliance or 
fraction th~of, unless the ~gional board makes express 
· 6ndinas setting forth the reasons for its failllre to do sO. 
based on the specific factors reqUired to be coiiSid.ered 
pu:rsuant to paragraph (2). 

(2) In determining the amo1mt of tb.e penalty imposed 
under this $CCtion, the regional board shall cot~sider the 
nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation, 
and, with re$pect to the violator, the ability to pay, any 
prior history of violatiOIIS, the degree of culpability, 
economic benefits or savings resulting from the violation, 
and other matters as justice may require. These 
considerations shall be balanced against the need for the 
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regulatory costs of environmental protection to be borne 
equally by dischargers thro~hOUI the state, 111d tlre need 
for predictability of enforcement when making business 
decisions. 

(b) With regard to a penon thlll fails to submit the 
required notice of nonapplicability · in accordance with 
Section 13399.30, impose civil liability adminis1ratlvely 
in the amount of one thousand dol~ (SI,OOO). 

(c) With regard to a person that fails to subll1it an annual 
report or construction certification in acCo'rdance with 
Section 13399.31, impose civil Uability administratively 
in an amount that is not less than one thousand dollars 
(Sl,OOO). 

(d) Recover from the person1 des~ in subdiviciooa 
(3), (b), 11nd (c) the costa incutred by the regional bomi . 
with regard to those peo;ons. 

(e) It is an affinnativc defense to the penalties imposed 
under this section Cor a person described in subdivUion 
(a) or (b) to prove thnt he or she did not, in &ot, receive 
the notices required und::r Seaion L3399.30 or 1339931. 

§ 13399.35. Reduction ofpcu1tles 
(a) The regional board may allow a person to reduce the 

penalties described in subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of 
Section 13399.'33 by up to SO percent by undenaking a 
supplemental environmental project in aceordmce with 
the enforcement policy of the state board and any 
applicable guidanCe: document 

(b) For tbe purposes of this section, a "supplemental 
environmental project" means an cnviranmentally 
beneficial project that a person agrees to undertake, with 
the approval of the regional board, wbioh would 110'1 be 
undc:ttaken in the absence of an cnfd.rccment .Ction under 
Section 13399.33. 

§ 13399.37. Deposit of funds 
(a) The money gmeratccl from the imposition of liability 
and cost recovecy pllrS\I8nt to Section l3399.33 dlaU be 
deposited, and separately accounted Cor, in tbe Waste 
Discharge Permit Fund. 

(b) Ti~A money described in subdivision (a) shall be 
available, upon appropriation by the Legislatun:, to the 
regional boards fiom which the revenues WI:Te generated 
Cor the pwpose of carryiu& our storm water programs 
under this division. 

j13399,<f1. Axcncy coopel"ation 
NorwltbstAnding any·other provision of law, appropriate 

atate agencies, as requested by the executive director of 
the state board, shall provide the mtc boud with tho 
tllmes, addresses, and standard indnstrial clasJificatioos 
or types of biUiness facilities that llie subject to storm 
Re'W. '1.11-1010 

water progranu under this division. The: infonnation 
obtained pumiant to this section shall be used by the state 
board solely to regulate the discharge of storm water 
associated with industrial activity under this division. The 
state shall reimburse state agencies Cor all reasonable 
tltpenses incurred In conn~011 with complying with this 
section. 

§ 13399.43. Doflnldon 
For tlre putpases of this chapter, "NPDES permit'' means 
a permit issued under the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system program in accordance with the Clean 
Wm(Act (33 U.S.C.A. Sec. l251 et seq.). 

CHAPTER 6. STATE .nJVANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE 

ARTICLE 1. STATE WATER QVALlTY CONTROL 
FUND . 

§ 13400. Definitions 
A$ wed in this chapter, unless otherwise apparent from 
the context: 

(a) "Fund" means the State Water Quality ContrOl. Fund. 

(b) "Public agency" means any ci\Y, county, cily and 
county, disll:ict, or other political wbdivision or the state. 

(c) "Faa1ities" TliCIItiS: (1) facilities for the collection, 
CrealmCI!t, or export of waste wbcn neceasary to pre"'ent 
water pollution, (2) facilities to recycle WISICWater and~ 
convey .recycled water, (3) facilities or dCYiees to 
conserve Wiler, or{4) any combinationafthe ros:soing. 

§ 13401. The State Water Quality Contl"ol Fund 
(a) The State Water Quality Control Fund is continued in 
tltistcnee. 'Ibe CoUowing moneys in the fund an: 
approprimd, without regard to fiacal years, fm 
expendimn: by tbc aWe board in making lo&ns to public 
agencies in acardancc with lhi, chapter: 

(1) The balance of the original moneys deposited in the 
fund. 

(2) Any money repaid to the fUnd. 

(3) Any remaining balaJlce of the money in the fund 
deposited thCfein after. the specific appropriatio!IS for 
108121 to tho South Tahoe Public Utility Di&lrjct, the: North 
Tahoe Public Utility District, the Tahoe City PubUe 
Utility District, the Truckee Sanitary District, and to any 
other governmental c:otiey in the areas sc:rved try such 
districts have been made. · 

(b) Notwithstanding subdivisioh (a), upon tbe order of 
the state board, the money in the State Water Quality 
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EXHIBIT E 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONAL RESOLUTION 
AND WAIVER OF RIGHT TO HEARING; ORDER 

Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss, Inc. 
PO Box 1769 
Lakeside, CA 92040 
WDID No. 9 371019954 

By signing below and returning this Acceptance of Conditional Resolution and Waiver 
of Right to Hearing (Acceptance and Waiver) to the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, San Diego Region (San Diego Water Board), Enniss, Inc. hereby . 
accepts the "Offer to Participate in the San Diego Water Board's Expedited Payment · 
Program for Failure to Submit the 2010-2011 Annual Industrial Storm Water Report" 
(Conditional Offer) and waives the right to a hearing before the San Diego Water Board 
to dispute the allegations of a violation described in the Notice of Violation (NOV) 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorpored herein by reference. 

Enniss, Inc. agrees that the NOV attached hereto shall serve as a complaint pursuant 
to Article 2.5 of the California Water Code and that no separate complaint is required 
for the San Diego Water Board to assert jurisdiction over the alleged violation through 
Its Executive Offier. Enniss, Inc. agrees to perform the following: 

1. Submit the 2010-201 ~ Annual Industrial Storm Water Report _on or before March 
23, 2012 to: 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region 
917 4 Sky Park Court, Suite 100 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Attention: Application ID: 291369:wghoram, WDID:9 371019954 

2. Pay administrative civil liability authorized by California Water Code section 
13399.30, in the sum of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1 ,0.00) (Expedited 
Payment Amount) by cashiers check or by certified check made payable to the 
State Water Resources Control Board, which shall be deemed payment in full of 
any administrative civil liability for the violation described in the NOV attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss, Inc. 

-2- February 23, 2012 

Enniss, Inc. understands that this Acceptance and Waiver waives its right to contest the 
allegations in the N.OV attached hereto as ·Exhibit A and the administrative civil liability 
amount for such violations. 

Enniss, Inc. understands that the failure to submit the Annual Report, as identified and 
described above, shall cause the San Diego Water Board enforcement staffs 
Conditional Offer and Ennlss, Inc.'s waiver pursuant to this Acceptance and Waiver to 
be withdrawn. After the San Diego Water Board enforcement staff's Conditional Offer 
and Enniss, Inc.'s waiver are deemed withdrawn, Enniss, Inc. will be advised of the 
withdrawals, an administrative civil liability complaint may be issued, and the matter 
may be set for a hearing before the San Diego Water Board or the State Water Board. 

Enniss, Inc. understands that this Acceptance and Wavier does not address or resolve 
liability for any violation that is not specifically identified in the NOV attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 

Upon execution by Enniss, Inc., the Acceptance and Wavier shall be returned to: 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region 
917 4 Sky Park Court, Suite 1 00 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Attention: Application ID: 291369:wghoram, WDID:9 371019954 

Enniss, Inc. understands that federal regulations set forth at title 40, Code of Federal 
Regulations, section 123.27(d)(2)(iii) require the San Diego Water Board to publish 
notice of and provide at least thirty (30) days for public comment on any proposed 
resolution of an enforcement action: Accordingly, this Acceptance and Wavier, prior to 
being formally executed by the Executive Officer of the San Diego Water Board, will be 
published as required by law for public comment. · 

If no comments are received within the notice period that cause the Executive Officer of 
the San Diego Water Board to reconsider the Expedited Payment Amount, the 
Executive Officer will formally endorse this Acceptance and Waiver. Resolution of 
these violations will preclude formal enforcement action by the San Diego Water Board 
for the failure to submit the report alleged in the NOV attached as Exhibit A. 

Enniss, Inc. understands that if significant comments are received in opposition to the 
Expedited Payment Amount, the offer on behalf of the San Diego Water Board · 
enforcement staff to resolve the violation set forth in the NOV attached hereto as 
Exhibit A may be withdrawn. If the San Diego Water Board offer is withdrawn, Enniss, 
Inc. will be advised of that withdrawal, and Ennlss, Inc.'s waiver pursuant to the 
Acceptance and Wavier will also be treated as withdrawn. After the San Diego Water 
Board enforcement staffs offer and Ennlss, Inc.'s waiver are deemed withdrawn, the 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss, Inc. 

-3-
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February 23, 2012 

unresolved violation(s) is likely to be addressed in a formal enforcement action. An 
administrative dvilliability complaint may be issued and the matter may be set for a 
hearing before the San Diego yYater Board or the State Water Board. For such a . 
liability hearing, Enniss, Inc. understands that this Acceptance and Waiver endorsed by 
Enniss, Inc. shall be treated as a settlement communication and shall not be used as 
evidence in that hearing. 

Enniss, Inc. understands that once this Acceptance and Wavier is formally executed by 
the Executive Officer of the San Diego Water Board, the full payment required by the 
deadline set forth below is a condition of this Acceptance and Wavier. Enniss, Inc. 
shall pay the Expedited Payment Amount of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1 ,000) by a 
cashier's check or certified check for the full amount made payable to the "State. Water 
Resources Control Board". Enniss, Inc. shall submit the payment to the San Diego 
Water Board no later than ten (1 0) calendar days after the date Enniss, Inc. receives 
written notice that the Executive Officer of the San Diego Water Board has formally 
endorsed this Acceptance and Waiver. 

I hereby affirm that I am duly authorized to act on behalf of and to bind Enniss, Inc. in 
the making and giving of this Acceptance and Waiver. 

Enniss. Inc. 
(Company) 

By: __ ~--~~~--------­
(Signed Name) 

(Printed or typed name) 

(Title) 

(Date) 

IT IS SO ORDERED PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA WATER CODE SECTION 
13399.30. 

Date:----------

By: -----------------David w. Gibson 
Executive Officer 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region 

Attachment: 
. . 

Exhibit A- Notice of Violation dated September 29, 2011 

Californw Environmental Pr_otection Agency 
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EXHIBIT A 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
7010 1060 0000 4952 9260 

In reply refer to: 

September 29, 2011 
WOlD #: 9 371019954 
NWU:tfelix 

Chad Enniss 
Enniss Inc 
PO Box 1769 
Lakeside, CA 92040 

Subject: 

Facility: 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION: NPDES NO. ·CAS000001 : ORDER NO. 97~03· 
DWQ: DISCHARGER NAME: WOlD 9 371019954: FAILURE TO SUBMIT 
2010-20111NDUSTRIAL STORM WATER ANNUAL REPORT 

Enniss Inc 
12535 Vigilante .Rd 
Lakeside, CA 92040 

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: 

You are in violation of the statewiQe General I ndustrlal Stonn. Water Permit Order 
No. 97~3-DWQ {Order) for failure to submit the 2010-2011 Annual Report. The 
Annual Report was due to the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San 
Diego Region (San Diego Water Board) by July 1, 2011 as required by Section 8.14 of 
the Order. · 

Pursuant to California Water Code {CWC) Sections 13399.31·33, and 13385, your 
failure to submit the Annual Report:subjects you to possible enforcement action by the 
S~n Diego Water Board. Civil liability could range from a mlnlmum of $1 ,000 and up to 
$10,000 a day for each day of violation, or up 'to $25,000 a day If the liability is 
assessed by a court. You may also be subject to criminal penalties under Section 
13387 of the ewe. The number of days of violation would be counted from July 1, 

· 2011, up to the date the 2010-2011 Annual Report is received. To minimize the 
potential liability assessed, please submit the Annual Report immediately. Submit 
online In SMARTS or mail the Annual Report to the address at the top of this page, 
attention Tony Felix. 

California Environmental P-rotection Agency 
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Enniss lnc 
Notice of Violation 

-2 - September 29, 2011 

If you have any questions ·pertaining to the submission of the Annual Report, and or the 
issuance of this NOV, please contact Tony Felix at (858) 636-3134, or by email at 
tfelix@waterboards.ca.gov .. . If you feel·you have· received this NOV in error, please 
contact our offioe immediately. 

R~~~ 
Davld Barker, P .E. 
Supervising Water Resources Control Engineer 
Surface Vy/ater Basins ·Branch 

DTB:esb: pab 

SMARTS· . 
Violation 10 

Enforcement 
10 

845539 

406484 
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Technical Analysis 
ACL Complaint No. R9-2013-Q051 

EXHIBIT C 

Discharger Response to EPL Letter 

March 7, 2012 

June 14, 2013 
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1arch 7 • .:!01 :! 

St t"" Of C lifomin 
Culifornia Regional Water Qlk'liity Control Board 
S l., Oicgo P ~ icm 
91 , 4 Sky Park C'o11r'. 1.1 "tc I 00 
San Diego. C li fomiu 92123-4340 

Ccrti fied 1 .. ·1 7009 r :0 000 J OQ()~ 5606 

Aaen ion: 1r. James G Smith. A<:;sistrult Exa..uth\! Oftic r 

Reference: Appli ·on ID: 29130"~ 

\VDil .q 1710:9954 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

P .O. 0oJL17U • Lalo•JcS., CA t2CMO 
P!*M 1GlA1·1t01 - Fea 1tl 443-e1e1 

We are in rece'pt of your lcttt..T dated FebTUal} 2 , 201 : "OFFER TO 
PARTJCIPATr I~ A"'f l:XPEDITFD PA YJVfEI'"'T PROGRA~M fOR f AJLL'RE 
TO SlJB' .. TTf1 20i0-20 ll ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL S"IORM WATER 
REPORT ORDFR '0. Oi -03-DWQ, "PDES NO. CASOOOOOI'\ a copy of which 
is enclosed. 

Also enclosed please fmd a copy of the report in q1.1estion, ~ hich wns prepared ar,d 
previously . ubmiued b, Hi ;Will Group Engineering. 

• I 'tfl Group Engineering asscrLS tt nl th n:pvrt ~..abmitt..d to th .. 
Board in a timely f~ion on or before July I. ::!0 1 J. a1 the same t me that 
r pons for other Highfill clients Y.ere submitted. H:0 hiill Groop tells us that 
all repo1s tl at they submitted for other clients' ~..re received by the Board. 

• Highfll Group Engineering st.ates ~t a copy of tl.e n:: rt 4--' hand­
delivered to your offices sometime in lal~ Decem~r 201 1. ftt..J Ms. 



Enniss Inc . 
• tnt of c ifomm 
Caillfomia Regional Water ~it~ Control Boord 
March G, 2012 
Reference: Application lD: 291369:wghornm 

WDID:9 371019954 

Ghoram's vbitlo our offices on December 20.201 [,and that n follow up 
call wns placed to Ms. Ghoram to ~otify her ofihe delivery of the copy of 
the repon. 

• Melisa Moorehead from Highftll Group Engineering represents that she has 
spoken to both Ms. Ghoram and Tony Felix since the most recent submittnl 
of the report and that botb ~kno\\ledge receipt ofthe 20J0-2011 Annual 
Repon. 

• Ms. Moorehead tllso t lb us that Ms. Ghoram i~ looking into having the 
fine/fcc related to lhe submittal of the report waived. 

We submit. this Jetter as a contest to the alleged violation, and ba ed upon 
infonnntion provided to us by our consultanL Highfill Group Engmeer.n& 
respectfully request that the Board cease funhcr action on this mat·er 

Your kind con."idcrntion is app;.-eci..u.ed. 

Controller 
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EXHIBIT D 

Withdrawal of EPL Offer 

March 30, 2012 

June 14, 2013 
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March 30,2012 

Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss Inc. 
PO Box 1769 

9174 Sky Parle Cowt, Suite 100, San Diego, California 921234353 
(858) 467-29S2 • Fa.x (8S8) S7l-69n 

http:// www.waterboan!s.c~.gov/sandicgo 

Certified Mall-Return Receipt Requested 
7010 1060 0000 4952 9888 
In reply refer to: 
Application ID: 291369:wghoram 
WDID:9 371019954 

Lakeside, California 92040 

REJECTION OF EXPEDITED PAYMENT PROGRAM FOR FAILURE TO SUBMIT THE 
2010-2011 ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL STORM WATER REPORT, ORDER NO. 97-03-
0WQ, NPOES NO. CAS000001 

ENNISS INC., 12535 VIGILANTE ROAD, LAKESIDE, CA 92040 

Mr. Enniss: 

By letter dated March 7, 2012 you declined the offer to participate in the California 
Regional Water QuaJity Control Board, San Diego Region (San Diego Water Board) 
Expedited Payment Program for Eniss Inc.'s failure to submit the 2010-2011 Annual 
Report (Annual Report) by the JuJy 1, 2011 due date. In your response letter, you 
reported that the Annual Report was submitted to the San Diego Water Board 
sometime in late December2011 and provided an unsigned copy of the Annual Report. 
San Diego Water Board staff have reviewed the Administrative Records for Ennis Inc. 
and concluded that there is no record of the Annual Report being submitted in 
December 2011. Therefore, the San Diego Water Board cannot confirm Enniss' 
alleged submittal of the Annual Report. Furthermore, neither Enniss nor its consultant. 
Highfill Group Engineering, has provided documentation to support the alleged timely 
submittal. 

The San Diego Water Board settlement offer for Ennis Inc. to participate in the 
Expedited Payment Program is now deemed withdrawn. This offer was an opportunity 
for Ennis Inc. to resolve the violation for failure to submit the report by paying the 
minimum penalty. By declining the San Diego Water Board's settlement offer, Eniss Inc. 
should now expect that a formal enforcement action wilt be pursued for which it will 
receive notice of any deadlines associated with that action. In such an action, the 
liability amount sought and/or imposed may signif~<:antly exceed the $ 1,000 mandatory 
minimum penalty required by law. Moreover, the San Diego Water Board staff costs 
incurred for enforcement are an additional factor which will be considered in assessing 
Enniss, Inc.'s liability amount. 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Mr. Chad Enniss 
Enniss Inc. 

Page 2 of 2 March 30, 2012 

Any questions regarding this letter should be directed to Ms. Whitney Ghoram at 858-
467-2967 or wghoram@waterboards.ca.gov. 

Respectfully, 

~~ 
J~s{(sM;H 
Assistant Executive Officer 

JS:dtb:esb:wjg 

cc via email: 

Jeremy Haas, Senior Environmental Scientist, CAU. San Diego Water Board, !haas@waterboaros.ca.gov 

Laura Orabandt, Staff Counsel, Office of Enforcement, State Water Board, 
ldrabandt@waterboards.ca"gov 

SMARTS: 
Application 10: 291369 
Violation 10 : 845539 
Enforoement reference 10: 406484 

California Environmental Protection Agency 
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Technical Analysis June 14, 2013 
ACL Complaint No. R9-2013-0051 

EXHIBIT E 

Staff Cost Estimation 



ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY COMPLAINT R9-2013-0051 

STAFF COSTS TO OBTAIN COMPLIANCE: 

Staff Position Task Estimated Estimated 
Hours Cost 

Student Assistant Drafting and Issuance of 1st NOV (9/29/2011) 1 $150 
Senior Eng Review and sign NOV 0.5 $75 
Sanitary Eng Site Inspection (12/20/2011) and 2"d request 3 $450 
Associate for submittal of Annual Report 

Sanitary Eng Drafting and Issuance of Expedited Payment 8 $1200 
Associate Letter (EPL) dated 02/23/2012 
Senior Eng Review case, edit EPL 2 $300 
Branch Manager Review case, edit EPL 1 $150 
Asst Exec Officer Review and Sign EPL 0.5 $75 
Sanitary Eng Review EPL Rejection Letter, database research 1 $150 
Associate for " missing report" 
Sanitary Eng Drafting and issuance of EPL rejection response 1 $150 
Associate letter (03/30/2012) 
Senior Eng Review response letter, ed it 0.5 $75 
Asst Exec Officer Review response letter sign 0.5 $75 
Env Scientist (CAU) Review Case, Draft ACL Complaint & Tech 10 $1500 

Analysis 

Senior Env. Review and edit Draft ACL Complaint 2 $300 
Scientist (CAU) 

Branch Manager Review Draft ACL Complaint 1 $150 
Asst Exec Officer Review and Sign ACL Complaint 1 $150 

TOTAL $4,950 

NOTE: Staff costs are based on an average rate of $150 per hour, as directed by the St ate Water Board 
Office of Enforcement 
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